
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

C O R P O R A T E  
C O M M I T T E E  

 

SPECIAL MEETING 
 

Wednesday, 2nd October, 2019 
 

at 6.00 pm 
   

Room 102, Hackney Town Hall, Mare Street, 
London E8 1EA 

  

Committee Membership 
  
Cllr Jessica Webb (Chair), Cllr Susan Fajana-Thomas (Vice-Chair) 
Cllr Katie Hanson, Cllr Vincent Stops 
Cllr Mete Coban, Cllr M Can Ozsen 
Cllr Brian Bell, Cllr Ajay Chauhan 
Cllr Ned Hercock, Cllr Clare Joseph 
Cllr Anthony McMahon, Cllr Peter Snell 
Cllr Michael Levy, Cllr Steve Race 
Cllr Carole Williams 
 

Tim Shields 
Chief Executive  
 

Contact: 
Rabiya Khatun 
Governance Services Officer 
Tel: 020 8356 6279 
Email: Rabiya.khatun@hackney.gov.uk 
 

The press and public are welcome to attend this meeting 
 

 



 

AGENDA 
Wednesday, 2nd October, 2019 

  

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

 

1   Apologies for Absence   

2   Declarations of Interest - Members to Declare As Appropriate   

3   Dockless Bicycles - London-Wide Byelaw  1 - 10 

4   Any Other Business Which in The Opinion Of The Chair is 
Urgent  

 

Item No  Page No 



 

Access and Information 

 

Location 

 
Hackney Town Hall is on Mare Street, bordered by Wilton Way and Reading Lane, 
almost directly opposite Hackney Picturehouse. 
 

 
Trains – Hackney Central Station (London Overground) – Turn right on leaving the 
station, turn right again at the traffic lights into Mare Street, walk 200 metres and look 
for the Hackney Town Hall, almost next to The Empire immediately after Wilton Way. 
 

 
Buses 30, 48, 55, 106, 236, 254, 277, 394, D6 and W15. 
 

 

Facilities 

There are public toilets available, with wheelchair access, on the ground floor of the 
Town Hall. 
 

Induction loop facilities are available in the Committee Rooms and Council Chamber 
 

Access for people with mobility difficulties can be obtained through the ramp on the 
side to the main Town Hall entrance. 

 

Copies of the Agenda 

The Hackney website contains a full database of meeting agendas, reports and 
minutes. Log on at: www.hackney.gov.uk 

Paper copies are also available from Governance Services whose contact details are 
shown on page 1 of the agenda.  

 

Council & Democracy- www.hackney.gov.uk  
 

The Council & Democracy section of the Hackney Council website contains details 
about the democratic process at Hackney, including: 
 

 Mayor of Hackney  
 Your Councillors  
 Cabinet  
 Speaker  
 MPs, MEPs and GLA 
 Committee Reports  
 Council Meetings  
 Executive Meetngs and Key Decisions Notice 
 Register to Vote 
 Introduction to the Council  
 Council Departments  
 

 

http://www.hackney.gov.uk/
http://www.hackney.gov.uk/mayor-hackney.htm
http://mginternet.hackney.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.asp?bcr=1
http://www.hackney.gov.uk/cabinet.htm
http://www.hackney.gov.uk/l-speaker.htm
http://www.hackney.gov.uk/local-mps-meps-gen-info.htm
http://www.hackney.gov.uk/l-mayor-cabinet-councillors.htm
http://mginternet.hackney.gov.uk/mgCalendarMonthView.asp?GL=1&bcr=1
http://www.hackney.gov.uk/elections-electoral-register.htm
http://www.hackney.gov.uk/l-council-introduction.htm
http://www.hackney.gov.uk/xc-departments.htm


 
 
 
Where a meeting of the Council and its committees are open to the public, the press 
and public are welcome to report on meetings of the Council and its committees, 
through any audio, visual or written methods and may use digital and social media 
providing they do not disturb the conduct of the meeting and providing that the 
person reporting or providing the commentary is present at the meeting. 
 
Those wishing to film, photograph or audio record a meeting are asked to notify the 
Council’s Monitoring Officer by noon on the day of the meeting, if possible, or any 
time prior to the start of the meeting or notify the Chair at the start of the meeting. 
 
The Monitoring Officer, or the Chair of the meeting, may designate a set area from 
which all recording must take place at a meeting. 
 
The Council will endeavour to provide reasonable space and seating to view, hear 
and record the meeting.  If those intending to record a meeting require any other 
reasonable facilities, notice should be given to the Monitoring Officer in advance of 
the meeting and will only be provided if practicable to do so. 
 
The Chair shall have discretion to regulate the behaviour of all those present 
recording a meeting in the interests of the efficient conduct of the meeting.   Anyone 
acting in a disruptive manner may be required by the Chair to cease recording or 
may be excluded from the meeting. Disruptive behaviour may include: moving from 
any designated recording area; causing excessive noise; intrusive lighting; 
interrupting the meeting; or filming members of the public who have asked not to be 
filmed. 
 
All those visually recording a meeting are requested to only focus on recording 
councillors, officers and the public who are directly involved in the conduct of the 
meeting.  The Chair of the meeting will ask any members of the public present if they 
have objections to being visually recorded.  Those visually recording a meeting are 
asked to respect the wishes of those who do not wish to be filmed or photographed.   
Failure by someone recording a meeting to respect the wishes of those who do not 
wish to be filmed and photographed may result in the Chair instructing them to cease 
recording or in their exclusion from the meeting. 
 
If a meeting passes a motion to exclude the press and public then in order to 
consider confidential or exempt information, all recording must cease and all 
recording equipment must be removed from the meeting room. The press and public 
are not permitted to use any means which might enable them to see or hear the 
proceedings whilst they are excluded from a meeting and confidential or exempt 
information is under consideration. 
 
Providing oral commentary during a meeting is not permitted. 

RIGHTS OF PRESS AND PUBLIC TO REPORT ON MEETINGS 



 
 
 
Hackney Council’s Code of Conduct applies to all Members of the Council,   
the Mayor and co-opted Members.  
 
This note is intended to provide general guidance for Members on declaring 
interests. However, you may need to obtain specific advice on whether you have an 
interest in a particular matter. If you need advice, you can contact: 
 

 The Director of Legal and Governance Services 

 The Legal Adviser to the committee; or 

 Governance Services. 
 
If at all possible, you should try to identify any potential interest you may have before 
the meeting so that you and the person you ask for advice can fully consider all the 
circumstances before reaching a conclusion on what action you should take.  
 
 
 
 
You will have a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter if it:  

 
i. relates to an interest that you have already registered in Parts A and C of the 

Register of Pecuniary Interests of you or your spouse/civil partner, or anyone 
living with you as if they were your spouse/civil partner; 

 
ii. relates to an interest that should be registered in Parts A and C of the  Register 

of Pecuniary Interests of your spouse/civil partner, or anyone living with you as 
if they were your spouse/civil partner, but you have not yet done so; or 

 
iii. affects your well-being or financial position or that of your spouse/civil partner, 

or anyone living with you as if they were your spouse/civil partner. 
 
 
 
 
 

i. Declare the existence and nature of the interest (in relation to the relevant 
agenda item) as soon as it becomes apparent to you (subject to the rules 
regarding sensitive interests).  

 
ii. You must leave the room when the item in which you have an interest is being 

discussed.  You cannot stay in the meeting room or public gallery whilst 
discussion of the item takes place and you cannot vote on the matter.  In 
addition, you must not seek to improperly influence the decision. 

 
iii. If you have, however, obtained dispensation from the Monitoring Officer or 

Standards Committee you may remain in the room and participate in the 
meeting.  If dispensation has been granted it will stipulate the extent of your 
involvement, such as whether you can only be present to make representations, 
provide evidence or whether you are able to fully participate and vote on the 
matter in which you have a pecuniary interest. 

ADVICE TO MEMBERS ON DECLARING INTERESTS 

1.  Do you have a disclosable pecuniary interest in any matter on 
the agenda or which is being considered at the meeting? 

 

 

2. If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest in an item on the 
agenda you must: 

 



 
 
 
You will have ‘other non-pecuniary interest’ in a matter if: 
 

i. It relates to an external body that you have been appointed to as a Member or 
in another capacity; or  

 
ii. It relates to an organisation or individual which you have actively engaged in 

supporting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

i. Declare the existence and nature of the interest (in relation to the relevant 
agenda item) as soon as it becomes apparent to you.  

 
ii. You may remain in the room, participate in any discussion or vote provided that 

contractual, financial, consent, permission or licence matters are not under 
consideration relating to the item in which you have an interest.   

 
iii. If you have an interest in a contractual, financial, consent, permission or licence 

matter under consideration, you must leave the room unless you have obtained 
a dispensation from the Monitoring Officer or Standards Committee.  You 
cannot stay in the room or public gallery whilst discussion of the item takes 
place and you cannot vote on the matter.  In addition, you must not seek to 
improperly influence the decision.  Where members of the public are allowed to 
make representations, or to give evidence or answer questions about the matter 
you may, with the permission of the meeting, speak on a matter then leave the 
room. Once you have finished making your representation, you must leave the 
room whilst the matter is being discussed.   
 

iv. If you have been granted dispensation, in accordance with the Council’s 
dispensation procedure you may remain in the room.  If dispensation has been 
granted it will stipulate the extent of your involvement, such as whether you can 
only be present to make representations, provide evidence or whether you are 
able to fully participate and vote on the matter in which you have a non 
pecuniary interest.   

 
 
 

 

Advice can be obtained from Suki Binjal, Interim Director of Legal and Governance 
Services on 020 8356 6234 or email suki.binjal@hackney.gov.uk 
 

 

 

3.  Do you have any other non-pecuniary interest on any matter on 

the agenda which is being considered at the meeting? 

 

4. If you have other non-pecuniary interest in an item on the agenda 
you must: 

 

 

Further Information 
 

mailto:Yinka.Owa@hackney.gov.uk


 
 
 
 

 

 
DOCKLESS BICYCLES - LONDON-WIDE BYELAW 
 

 
 
CORPORATE COMMITTEE 
MEETING DATES  2019/20 

 
 
2 October 2019 
 
  
 

 
 

CLASSIFICATION:  
 
 
OPEN 
 
If exempt, the reason will be listed in the 
main body of this report. 

 
WARD(S) AFFECTED 
 
All Wards 
 
 
 

 
GROUP DIRECTOR 
 
Kim Wright, Neighbourhoods and Housing 
 
 
 
  
 
 

 
 

 
  

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



1.  INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1. Hackney supports cycle hire schemes as they enable access to a bike without 

the need to own one and is a way of getting more people cycling. However, the 
London Santander cycle scheme only covers the south of the borough and 
therefore is of limited benefit to our residents. The Council fully supports the roll 
out of dockless bike schemes, which allows flexibility as to where bikes can be 
hired from and where they can be left. But this flexibility needs to be balanced  
with the needs of pedestrians using pavements/highways and to ensure that 
when they are parked, the bikes do not block pavements and make it hard for 
people, especially those with mobility impairments, to get around. Boroughs 
have recognised this as a Londonwide issue and have worked with London 
Councils, the existing joint committee representing all of London’s local highway 
authorities, to set in motion a way of better controlling where dockless bikes can 
be safely left.  

 
1.2. As part of a competitive tendering process, officers have specified how the 

Council wants to work with bike sharing partners in Hackney in order to help us 
increase the amount of cycling in the borough and bring greater rigour to the 
rollout of dockless bike technology. Through this competitive process we are to 
work with local dockless bike operators ‘Beryl and Jump’ on a two year project 
which will see hundreds of bikes operating throughout the borough. These 
operators are committed to only operating from designated parking areas which 
we have defined in agreement with them.  
 

1.3. Currently, each Local Authority reaches individual agreements with their specific 
operators as to how the schemes are managed. London Councils TEC have 
now agreed that the correct future approach for dockless bike sharing would be 
to move to a common operation throughout Greater London.  
 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS  

 
2.1 That the Committee recommends to Full Council, the development 
and adoption of the new pan-London Dockless Byelaw as proposed by 
the London Councils Transport and Environmental Committee [LCTEC] 
and also recommends the delegation of the Borough’s functions relating 
to making and promoting the pan-London dockless byelaw to LCTEC 
 
2.2 That Committee recommends to full Council the Chief Executive as 
the authorised person to delegate the borough’s functions in 
recommendation 2.1.  
 

 
  

Page 2



3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The issue of managing where dockless bikes can be safely left has been 
exercised by TfL and borough officers. TfL’s Code of Practice on dockless bike 
operation, to which operators should adhere, requires operators to manage 
their schemes so that bikes do not restrict or affect the use of footways or other 
public spaces. However, this has not always been effectively managed by 
operators. Further, councils have limited scope to effectively manage where 
dockless bikes can be parked. TfL, London Councils and borough officers have 
discussed a move away from the status quo, where boroughs reach individual 
agreements with specific operators, and instead move to borderless operations 
throughout London. A byelaw has been drafted with the aim of providing the 
right controls and sufficient scope to enable boroughs to retain control of how 
schemes are managed locally. 
 
3.2 It is envisaged that the control of the bike schemes would be achieved 
by Boroughs using their existing powers to designate parking places for 
dockless bikes, and the promotion of a pan-London byelaw on the Boroughs’ 
behalf to prohibit bike operators from parking dockless bikes other than at 
approved parking places. This would be following a proposed delegation of 
powers and also subject to byelaw making procedures.  
 
3.3 As an existing joint committee representing all of London’s highway 
authorities, London Councils Transport and Environment Committee [LCTEC] 
has agreed that it is a suitable body to undertake both the promotion and the 
making of such a pan-London byelaw. However, to enable them to do so, the 
current LCTEC Agreement needs to be amended. At the LCTEC meeting held 
on 19 June 2019, it was agreed to commence the process of amending the 
LCTEC agreement currently in place and to delegate the Council’s functions 
relating to making and promoting a pan-London byelaw to LCTEC. The 
reasoning  behind the amendment is as a result of  LCTEC not having the legal 
authority to undertake the function of making a Londonwide Byelaw relating to 
dockless bike parking on behalf of the London local authorities. 
 
3.4 The proposed delegation is highly restricted. It specifically relates to 
allowing LCTEC to make and promote a London Byelaw to manage parking of 
dockless bikes. The Council would still be allowed to manage the extent of 
dockless bike parking. The enforcement of the Byelaw would be a matter for 
local decision making and control at the discretion of each London Borough. 
The proposed draft Byelaw is attached to this report at Appendix 1. The 
proposed wording of the Byelaw covers both dockless bikes and e-bikes and 
could apply to electric scooters or other micro mobility vehicles. 
 
3.5 LCTEC invited the London Boroughs to provide comments to them on 
the proposed wording of the Byelaw. This Council’s legal department have 
submitted comments to the LCTEC for consideration in relation to whom the 
Byelaw should be enforced against. Currently, the wording of the draft Byelaw 
limits enforcement to the Dockless operator. This Council has proposed that 
they consider whether enforcement should be extended to a Customer of the 
Dockless operator too, in order to deter customers of the Dockless operators 

Page 3



from leaving the Dockless bikes in a non-designated area. These submissions 
have been forwarded to LCTEC’s legal team and TfL. The Council have been 
advised that a further report is to be made to LCTEC on 10 October which is 
expected to seek approval of the final wording of the Byelaw. The report will 
also enable other essential procedural parts of the process for both the adoption 
and implementation of the byelaw to be taken forward and clarified. It has been 
decided that during this time, the process of delegating powers should continue 
in parallel. An update will be provided to Council following this meeting.     
 
3.6 London Councils are seeking each London Borough to go through their 
internal Governance processes and return a signed declaration by 5 December 
2019. The declaration, attached to this report at Appendix 2, relates to the 
specific delegation to LCTEC to make the byelaw to regulate the parking of 
dockless bikes.  
 
3.7 Byelaws are a Non- Executive Function that are to be exercised by Full 
Council. It is proposed that a report is placed before the next Full Council on 
the 30th October 2019. However, before this can be done, a recommendation 
from Corporate Committee is required for the Development and adoption of the 
proposed Pan-London Byelaw.  
 

 
 4. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
 
4.1  Policy Context 
 
Hackney’s Transport Strategy seeks to encourage more cycling in the borough 
and includes a target of 15% cycling mode share for all journeys by 2025. 
Dockless bikes have a role to play in increasing the amount of cycling 
particularly for those residents without ready access to their own bike. 
 
4.2  Equality Impact Assessment 
 
The Council carried out an Equality Impact Assessment for its Local 
Implementation Plan [Transport Strategy]. This assessed the LIP objectives on 
eight equality groups. The EqIA considered the impact on Objective 1 
Reallocation of road space which states the Council will continue to reallocate 
carriageway road space from private motor vehicles to cycle route provision or 
cycle parking, walking or bus infrastructure. Identifying designated parking 
areas for dockless bikes would be within this objective.  
 
4.3 Sustainability 
 
Greater use of dockless bikes contributes to a switch away from motor vehicle 
traffic with associated improvements to air quality and a reduction in CO2 
emissions. 
 
4.4 Consultations 
 
Not applicable at present  

Page 4



 
4.5 Risk Assessment 
 
LC TEC are requesting that all Boroughs delegate the power to make the 
byelaw. There is a risk that not all boroughs approve this delegation and that 
therefore the byelaw is not enacted.   
 
4.6  Alternative Options 
 
The Council could progress its own byelaw instead of supporting a pan-London 
byelaw. However, it is considered this would not be the most effective 
approach. Any byelaw to manage designation of parking areas for dockless 
bikes is likely to require sign off by the Secretary of State.  
 
 
5.  COMMENTS OF THE GROUP DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND 
CORPORATE RESOURCES 
 
5.1   This proposal will have no financial impact to the Council as it proposes 
delegating a function to the London Councils Transport and Environment 
Committee. 
 
 
6.  COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR, LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE 
 
6.1  Paragraph 3.2 of the Council’s Constitution lists the Council Functions 
which  cannot be the responsibility of the Executive. Paragraph 3.2.8 under the 
heading ‘Byelaws’ provides that the function of “Making, amending, revoking, 
re-enacting or enforcing byelaws” is to be exercised by Full Council.  
 
6.2 Paragraph 3.3.1 of the Councils constitution, under Full Councils terms 
of reference, lists ‘Making, amending, revoking re-enacting or adopting byelaws 
and the promoting or opposing the making of legislation or personal bills.’ 
  
6.3 As this decision concerns the adoption and delegation of a new Byelaw  
which is to be implemented and will be enforced by this Council, it will  
need to be approved by Full Council. 
 
6.4 Within the Terms of reference for corporate committee, it states that 
they are to ‘develop, monitor, review and make recommendations to 
Full Council on the adoption of Byelaws’.  
 
6.5.     Article 11 of the Constitution states that the Council may delegate  
non-executive functions to other organisations or boards where 
legislation allows (paragraph 11.11).  
 
6.6  The relevant legislation which would allow for this delegation falls within  
the remit of this is section 101(5) of Local Government Act 1972 which   
states:- 
 

Page 5



“Two or more local authorities may discharge any of their functions  
jointly and, where arrangements are in force for them to do so,— (a)  
they may also arrange for the discharge of those functions by a joint  
committee of theirs ……..; and” 
 
London Councils Transport and Environment Committee (LCTEC) is a  
joint, statutory committee under sections 101 and 102 of the LGA 1972. 
 
6.7 The next Full Council is to be held on the 30th October 2019. The  
above recommendations are required from the Committee to be made  
to Full Council.  
 
 
 
APPENDICES 
 
1. Draft byelaw (This is Subject to change) 
2. Form to delegate authority 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None 

 

Report Author 
 

Malcolm Smith – Tel: 0208 356 8023 
Principal Transport Planner 
malcolm.smith@hackney.gov.uk  

Comments of the Group 
Director of Finance and 
Corporate Resources 

Deirdre Worrell - Tel: 0208 356 7350 
Director, Neighbourhoods and Housing Finance 
deirdre.worrell@hackney.gov.uk 

Comments of the Director, 
Legal and Governance 

Dawn Carter McDonald – Tel: 020 8356 4817 

Head of Legal and Governance  
Dawn.cartermcdonald@hackney.gov.uk 
Josephine Sterakides Tel: 0208 356 2775 
Senior Lawyer-General Litigation 

  

Page 6

mailto:Dawn.cartermcdonald@hackney.gov.uk


Appendix 1 Draft byelaw 
 

 
  

Page 7



  

Page 8



Appendix 2 Form to delegate authority 
 

Page 9



 

Page 10


	Agenda
	3 Dockless Bicycles - London-Wide Byelaw

